

Contents

Logging In	
Your Dashboard	
Appointments	5
Filtering and Searching Appointments	5
Appointment Status	6
Check-in and Processing	7
Checking in a patient	7
Processing an Appointment	
Viewing Appointments	
Appointment Results	
Uploading Files	
Errors	10
Administration	10
Managing Appointment Types	10
Adding Appointment Types	11
Adding Custom Fields	12
Editing Appointment Types	12
Deleting Appointment Types	12
Appointment Type URLs	12
Managing Tenant Locations	13
Adding Tenant Locations	13
Adding Resources	14
Editing Tenant Locations	14
Deleting Tenant Locations	14
Managing Payors	15
Adding Payors	15
Editing Payors	16
Deleting Payors	16
Managing Provider Portal Users	16
Adding Users	16
Editing Users	16
Deleting Users	16

Logging In

Using your computer's web browser, navigate to the ARxConnect login page at the URL provided to you. If you did not receive a URL, please contact support. Once the page has loaded, you will be presented with the login screen.

↔ AR _x Connect ProviderConnect Sign In O Help	
A Home » Account » Sign In	
Welcome! Please enter your registered email address and password to continue.	
Email address	
Password	
Sign in	
Keep me signed in <u>Forgot password?</u>	

Enter your e-mail address and password in their respective fields, and click the "Sign in" button.

If you are using a public or shared computer, it is recommended that you do not check the "Keep me signed in" box.

In the event that you forget your password, or if this is your first time logging in and you haven't been issued a password, you can initiate the retrieval process by clicking on the "Forgot password?" link. Enter your e-mail address in the text field and click the "Send" button. You will be returned to the login page. In a short while, you will receive an e-mail containing instructions detailing the rest of the password reset process. Please be sure to check your spam folder if you haven't received the password reset email.

Your Dashboard

After logging in, you'll be presented with a dashboard that will show you a breakdown of your appointments by status. Depending on the permissions assigned to you, you may also be shown any administrative functions you have available to you, such as managing appointment types, tenant locations, payors, and users.

My Dashboard				
Appointments Breakdown (view all)).			
75 81.52%	12 13.04%	8 8.70%	3 3.26%	2 2.17%
Completed	<u>Canceled</u>	Requires Corrections	<u>In Progress</u>	Pending
Appointment Types	📔 Tenant	Locations	🛃 Users	
5/unlimited View New	3 /unlir	View nited New	4 _{/unlimited}	View
Payors				
1 /unlimited View New				

Clicking on an appointment status chart will take you to your appointments page with the grid filtered to that status. For example, if you click on the "Canceled" chart, the appointment grid will initially only show canceled appointments.

The banner at the top of the page will also give you access to each of these functions:



"Home" will take you to the Dashboard, "Appointments" will take you to your appointment list, and "Manage" will allow you to manage any administrative functions assigned to you.

Appointments

The Appointments page will give you access to any appointments that have been scheduled for your organization. Appointments are displayed in a list with a summary of each appointment along with its status. The list can be sorted by clicking on any of the column headers to sort by that column.

ctions	↓ <u>ૈ Date</u>	1 ⁸ <u>Duration</u>	<u>†≜ Patient</u>	<u>1₂_Type</u>	1 [≜] <u>Location</u>	∱ <u>ੈ Status</u>	1ै <u>Created</u>	1 [†] ∎ <u>Updated</u>
Edit Check in Cancel	10/11/2023 1:45 PM EDT	20 minutes	Doe, John	Health Screening	Black Creek Pharmacy	Pending	10/11/2023 4:47 PM	
Process	10/11/2023 1:00 PM EDT	30 minutes	Smith, James	PGXMarkers	Black Creek Pharmacy	In Progress	10/11/2023 4:46 PM	
View	10/10/2023 10:15 AM EDT	30 minutes	Adams, Susan	PGXMarkers	Black Creek Pharmacy	Completed Approval Pending	10/10/2023 12:25 AM	10/11/202 5:15 PI
View	09/21/2023 9:45 AM EDT	15 minutes	Doe, John	Flu Vaccination	Black Creek Pharmacy	Completed	9/21/2023 1:49 AM	9/21/2023 1:5 Al
View	09/21/2023 9:00 AM EDT	30 minutes	Smith, James	Clopidogrel/Plavix	Black Creek Pharmacy	Completed Results Pending	9/21/2023 1:48 AM	10/11/202 5:15 PI
View Results	09/21/2023 8:00 AM EDT	30 minutes	Adams, Susan	PGXMarkers	Black Creek Pharmacy	Completed Results Received	9/21/2023 1:47 AM	9/21/2023 2:3 Al
2 total reco	rds							

Filtering and Searching Appointments

Appointments can be filtered and searched by using the "Search/Filter" section above the appointment list. You can select values from one or more of the filter options (Location, Type, or Status), or enter a value for the Patient Name or Scheduled Date to add a filter to your appointment list. Clicking on the "Apply" button will filter your list to match that criteria. Clicking on the "Clear" button will remove any filters.

Search / Filter				
Location:	Туре:	Patient Name:	Scheduled Date:	Status:
All	▼ All	 First, last, or middle initials 	MM/dd/YYYY	All
All My Location Only	▼ All	 First, last, or middle initials 	MM/dd/YYYY	All

Appointment Status

Each appointment will have a status to clearly indicate its state at each point of its life cycle.

Pending	Appointments that have been scheduled but not processed yet will have a "Pending" status.
Overdue / Missed	When a patient hasn't been checked in by their appointment time, the appointment will have an "Overdue/Missed" status.
Canceled	A patient may cancel their appointment after it has been scheduled. If this happens, the appointment will be given a "Canceled" status.
In Progress	When a patient has been checked in, or when an appointment is being processed but hasn't been completed yet, it will have an "In Progress" status.
Completed	When an appointment that doesn't require any processing or results from a third party has been completed, it will have a "Completed" status.
Completed Approval Pending	Some appointments (such as PGX testing) may result in a test that requires sample processing by a lab when the appointment is completed in the pharmacy. If an appointment is completed in the pharmacy, but the test is waiting on physician approval to be processed, it will have a "Completed – Approval Pending" status.
Completed Results Pending	Some appointments (such as PGX testing) may result in a test that requires sample processing by a lab when the appointment is completed in the pharmacy. If an appointment is completed in the pharmacy and the test has been approved by a physician (if necessary), but the sample is still being processed by the lab, it will have a "Completed – Results Pending" status.
Completed Results Received	Some appointments (such as PGX testing) may result in a test that requires sample processing by a lab when the appointment is completed in the pharmacy. If an appointment is completed in the pharmacy, the test has been processed by the lab, and results are available, it will have a "Completed – Results Received" status.
Requires Corrections	Some appointments (such as PGX testing) may result in a test that requires sample processing by a lab when the appointment is completed in the pharmacy. If there is a problem with the appointment details that prevents an order from being created for the lab, it will have a "Requires Corrections" status.

Check-in and Processing

When arriving for appointments, patients can be checked in and the appointment processed.

Checking in a Patient

Patients can be checked in by clicking the "Check in" button on the row for that patient/appointment in the appointment grid.

Actions	↓° <u>Date</u>	↑ [‡] <u>Duration</u>	1 <u>₽ Patient</u>	1≊_ <u>Туре</u>	1≜ <u>Location</u>	↑å <u>Status</u>	↑ [‡] <u>Created</u>	1 [†] <u>Updated</u>
Edit Check in Cancel	10/11/2023 1:45 PM EDT	20 minutes	Doe, John	Health Screening	Black Creek Pharmacy	Pending	10/11/2023 4:47 PM	

You can also scan or enter the appointment code from the patient's mobile device if they present that code to you when they check in.

Check in patient:	Şcan or enter code	🔟 Find	<u>Clear</u>

Patients can use the "Easy Check-In" process on their device by logging into their ARxConnect account and going to their scheduled appointments. Please note that the patient log in page is different from the page you use to log in.



When a patient is checked in, a confirmation page will be displayed. Clicking the "Check In" button will mark that appointment as "In Progress" and return you to the appointment page so you can finish processing the appointment later. In most cases, you'll click the "Check In & Process" button so you can process the appointment immediately.

Please confirm	×
You are about to che	eck a patient in for the following appointment:
Patient	Doe, John
Date / Time	10/11/2023 1:45 PM EDT
Туре	Health Screening
Location	Black Creek Pharmacy
	n to mark the appointment as checked-in, or use begin the appointment now.
	Cancel Check In Check In & Process

Processing an Appointment

Clicking the "Check In & Process" button during check in or clicking on the "Process" button on the appointment grid for an appointment that is in progress (not completed) will allow you to process that appointment.

While processing an appointment, you may view and edit any of the information that the patient entered when they scheduled the appointment. Depending on the appointment type, there may be additional "office only" fields that are available to you, some of which may be required.

Viewing Appointments

Once an appointment has been processed, you will no longer be able to make changes to the details of that appointment, but you can still view it. Clicking on the "View" button will allow you to view the details of that appointment.

Walk-in Appointments

Patients need to have an appointment to process them in ARxConnect. If a walk-in patient wishes to be seen without an appointment you have a couple options. You can direct them to the ARxConnect Patient Portal where they can schedule an appointment for the next available time slot on their mobile device, or you can create an appointment on their behalf in Patient Portal.

To create an appointment on behalf of a patient, you'll need to create an account in Patient Portal (you may want to do this ahead of time). You can use your email to do this. Once you have an account, you can log in and schedule an appointment, filling in the patient details as required. Once the appointment has been created, you'll be able to process it in Provider Portal.

Note: Patient Portal is a separate website. Your Patient Portal URL should have been provided to you. If not, please contact Support.

Appointment Results

For appointments that result in a test processed by a lab (such as PGX testing), with results that are returned once processing is complete, you will be able to view those results in ARxConnect. Once results are available, the appointment status will change to "Completed – Results Received" and you will see a "Results" button for that appointment. Clicking on that button will take you to the Appointment Results page. There you will see any result files received from the lab, any supporting files uploaded by the patient's provider, and any files that you may upload, such as consult reports. If the file is in a PDF format, clicking on the view document icon will allow you to view it in the report viewer. For files in another format, you may need to download them to view.

ppointment Results			•	View details	• <u>Back to appoin</u>	tment
ppointment Information	Documents					
eference:	≡ 87	2 (2	74% + 🕄 🔊		± ē	:
132-D14C-561E-A497	= 87	5 / 3 -	74% + L V		¥ 🗗	
atient:	Кличим	Genetic Test Results For Jac	cob Gilliam		Page 2 d	of 3
iilliam, Jacob						
tatus:			KDIN	II IA A°		
iompleted / Results Received			ARIV	IUM		
ocation:	1		Dosing G	uidance		
apital Pharmacy - Eastown	(ARVIUM	Clopidogrel Re (Plavix®) Cli	aduced Exposure to opidogrel Active etabolite (CYP2C19 cerebrovascu	genotype is associated with po tients may be at an increased	ossible decreased clopidogrel risk for adverse cardiac and	
ppointment Type:		*1	/*2 Intermediate etabolizer) ACS. PCI. an	d Neurovascular Indications	: contraindicated in TIA/stroke).	or
lopidogrel/Plavix			ticagrelor. In p alternative do	alternative such as prasugrel (o patients with ACS or PCI, if clo sing strategies exist and may I	pidogrel cannot be avoided, be considered.	
ate & Time:		Guidance Levels	enotype, a medication has potentially red	uced efficacy or increased toxicity	or the patient has an increased r	risk
		for the indicated condition. Based upon the patient's gr indicated condition.	enotype, guidelines exist for adjusting dos	sage or increased vigilance or the	patient has a moderate risk for th	е
ate & Time: /20/2023 8:15:00 AM	2	Based upon the patient's op for the indicated condition. Based upon the patient's op indicated condition. State of this patient's gen condition is not increased. Evidence Levels	enotype, guidelines exist for adjusting dos otype, the medication can be prescribed a	sage or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate	е
	2 Aeroux	■ Based upon the patient's generation of the indicated condition. ▲ Based upon the patient's definition of the definition of the definition of the patient's condition is not increased. Evidence Levels Evidence Levels Actionable - Recommendation	enotype, guidelines exist for adjusting dos otype, the medication can be prescribed a tions based upon publications by internat	sage or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or ional pharmacogenetic expert gro	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups <u>consortia or regulatory</u>	е
		■ Based upon the patient's generation of the indicated condition. ▲ Based upon the patient's definition of the definition of the definition of the patient's condition is not increased. Evidence Levels Evidence Levels Actionable - Recommendation	enotype, guidelines exist for adjusting dos otype, the medication can be prescribed a	sage or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or ional pharmacogenetic expert gro	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups <u>consortia or regulatory</u>	е
	2 Account The second second Second second se	■ Based upon the patient's generation of the indicated condition. ▲ Based upon the patient's definition of the definition of the definition of the patient's condition is not increased. Evidence Levels Evidence Levels Actionable - Recommendation	enotype, guidelines exist for adjusting dos otype, the medication can be prescribed a tions based upon publications by internat	sage or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or ional pharmacogenetic expert gro	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups <u>consortia or regulatory</u>	d
		■ Based upon the patiently of or the incident condition. ■ Based upon the patiently of modeated condition. ■ Based on the patiently and ■ Control of the patient of the ■ Control of the patient of the patient of the ■ Control of the patient of the patient of the patient of the patient of the ■ Control of the patient of t	enotype, guidelines exist for adjusting dor otype, the medication can be prescribed a tione based upon publications by internat EMA). Recommendations fractions are suitable sufficient or contradictory findings documents as are informative and implementation in	lage or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or ional pharmacogenetic expert gror implementation in a clinical setti miting the impact of a given genet a clinical setting is optional.	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups, consortia or regulatory g, Guidelines may change as ic polymorphism or drug	d
	Acrossed The second se	■ Based upon the patiently of or the incident condition. ■ Based upon the patiently of modeated condition. ■ Based on the patiently and ■ Control of the patient of the ■ Control of the patient of the patient of the ■ Control of the patient of the patient of the patient of the patient of the ■ Control of the patient of t	enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo otype, the medication can be prescribed a fitore based upon publications by internat EXA). Recommendations are subside for auxiliaries or contradictory findings documents as are informative and implementation in Type	age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or local pharmacogenetic expart gro implementation in a clinical settir ming the impact of a given genet a clinical setting is optional. Size	patient has a moderate risk for th If the patient's risk for the indicate ups. consortia or regulatory rg. Guidelines may change as ic polymorphism or drug Added	d Fro
	Annual Name Provider Order Attac	Action of the justice of the justice of the indicate condition. Action of the justice of the indicate of condition. Action of the justice of t	enotype, guidelines exist for adjusting doo obype, the medication can be prescribed or tions based upon publications by internat EXAI). Recommendations are sublief for utilities of contractive studies for utilities of contractive studies for utilities of contractive studies of the Type C_ application/pdf	lage or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or ional pharmacogenetic expert gro implementation in a clinical setting a clinical setting is optional.	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups, consortia or regulatory rg, Guidelines may change as is polymorphasm or drug Added 09/26/2023	Fro
	Auroux Image: State	Measure on the paster of the indexed condition.	enolype, guidelines exist for adjusting doo oxype, the medication can be prescribed a ficine lased quor publications are sublate to any set of the set of the set of the set of the Markowski set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the Type R application/pdf R application/pdf	age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or ional phenomenocogenetic expert gro implementacogenetic expert gro implementacogenetic expert gro increased and the standard of the standard of the standard of the standard Size 34.31 KB 32.14 KB	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups, consortia or regulatory rg. Guidelines may change as is polymorphism or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/21/2023	Fro ⊥ ⊥
	Anme Image: State of the state	Mental dors the patterny of the first order of the index of the	enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo coppe, the medication can be prescribed a finite based upon publications by internat EMA, Recommendations are suitable for suitable for suitable and implementation in a Type	age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or implementation in a direct ability source of the standard regimens of implementation in a direct ability a direct ability Size 34,31 KB 32,14 KB 248,59 KB	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups. consortia or regulatory rg. Guidelines may change as ic polymorphism or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/21/2023 09/19/2023	Froi ≞
	Auroux Image: State	Mental dors the patterny of the first order of the index of the	enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo coppe, the medication can be prescribed a finite based upon publications by internat EMA, Recommendations are suitable for suitable for suitable and implementation in a Type	age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or implementation in a direct ability source of the standard regimens of implementation in a direct ability a direct ability Size 34,31 KB 32,14 KB 248,59 KB	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups. consortia or regulatory rg. Guidelines may change as ic polymorphism or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/21/2023 09/19/2023	Froi
	Aame Image: Consult Image: Consult </td <td>Mental dors the patterny of the first order of the index of the</td> <td>enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo coppe, the medication can be prescribed a finite based upon publications by internat EMA, Recommendations are suitable for suitable for suitable and implementation in a Type</td> <td>age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or implementation in a direct ability source of the standard regimens of implementation in a direct ability a direct ability Size 34,31 KB 32,14 KB 248,59 KB</td> <td>patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups. consortia or regulatory rg. Guidelines may change as ic polymorphism or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/21/2023 09/19/2023</td> <td>Teron I I I I I I I I I I I I I</td>	Mental dors the patterny of the first order of the index of the	enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo coppe, the medication can be prescribed a finite based upon publications by internat EMA, Recommendations are suitable for suitable for suitable and implementation in a Type	age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or implementation in a direct ability source of the standard regimens of implementation in a direct ability a direct ability Size 34,31 KB 32,14 KB 248,59 KB	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups. consortia or regulatory rg. Guidelines may change as ic polymorphism or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/21/2023 09/19/2023	Teron I I I I I I I I I I I I I
	Aume Image: Consult Image: Consult </td <td>Mental dors the patterny of the first order of the indicated order o</td> <td>enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo coppe, the medication can be prescribed a finite based upon publications by internat EMA, Recommendations are suitable for suitable for suitable and implementation in a Type</td> <td>age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or implementation in a direct ability source of the standard regimens of implementation in a direct ability a direct ability Size 34,31 KB 32,14 KB 248,59 KB</td> <td>patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups_consortia or regulatory rg, Guidelines may change as ic polymorphem or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/19/2023 09/19/2023</td> <td>Froi</td>	Mental dors the patterny of the first order of the indicated order o	enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo coppe, the medication can be prescribed a finite based upon publications by internat EMA, Recommendations are suitable for suitable for suitable and implementation in a Type	age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or implementation in a direct ability source of the standard regimens of implementation in a direct ability a direct ability Size 34,31 KB 32,14 KB 248,59 KB	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups_consortia or regulatory rg, Guidelines may change as ic polymorphem or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/19/2023 09/19/2023	Froi
	Aame Image: Consult Image: Consult </td <td>Mental dors the patterny of the first order of the indicated order o</td> <td>enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo coppe, the medication can be prescribed a finite based upon publications by internat EMA, Recommendations are suitable for suitable for suitable and implementation in a Type</td> <td>age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or implementation in a direct ability source of the standard regimens of implementation in a direct ability a direct ability Size 34,31 KB 32,14 KB 248,59 KB</td> <td>patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups. consortia or regulatory rg. Guidelines may change as ic polymorphism or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/21/2023 09/19/2023</td> <td>Froi</td>	Mental dors the patterny of the first order of the indicated order o	enotypes, guidelines exist for adjusting doo coppe, the medication can be prescribed a finite based upon publications by internat EMA, Recommendations are suitable for suitable for suitable and implementation in a Type	age or increased vigilance or the according to standard regimens or implementation in a direct ability source of the standard regimens of implementation in a direct ability a direct ability Size 34,31 KB 32,14 KB 248,59 KB	patient has a moderate risk for th r the patient's risk for the indicate ups. consortia or regulatory rg. Guidelines may change as ic polymorphism or drug Added 09/26/2023 09/21/2023 09/19/2023	Froi

Uploading Files

For some appointments you may be required to upload files such as consult reports that will be shared with the patient's provider. You can do that on the Appointment Results page once the test results have been received. Clicking on the "Upload Document" button will allow you to select a document to upload.

Errors

For appointments that result in a test processed by a lab (such as PGX testing), appointment data will be sent electronically to that lab. If there is a problem with the appointment details that prevents an order from being created for the lab, the appointment status will be updated to "Requires Corrections", and you will see a "Fix Errors" button for that appointment. Clicking on that button will load the appointment, with an error message displayed at the top. You may correct that error in the appointment details and then complete the appointment again to resend the data with the corrected information back to the lab for processing.

Process Appointmen	t	
Record #: FC1E45860A37BDDF		
 One or more errors where r Sample Label 875867970 	eported while processing this appointment. P is invalid	lease correct and resubmit.
Leasting Information		
Location Information		
Date & time:	Location:	Appointment type:
7/12/2023 2:00:00 PM	Capital Pharmacy - Downtown	PGXMarkersPlus
Free start discussions	N-4	

Administration

Depending on the permissions assigned to your account, you may be able to manage administrative functions in ARxConnect. These may include managing appointment types, tenant locations, payors, and users.

Managing Appointment Types

While there may be some default appointment types available to you (such as PGX testing appointments), you can also create your own appointment types for patients to select from when scheduling appointments. Any appointment types you add will be included in the list on the Appointment Types page for you to manage.

+ New A	ppointmen	t Type ↓1	Set Display Orde	r					
н < >	Pa	ge 1 of 1 S	how: 25 🗸	Skip to page:	1 Go 🕻	*			
							Tenant		
Actions		1≜ <u>Active</u>	1 <u>≊_Code</u>	∱ <u>z</u> <u>Name</u>	1 [≜] <u>Requires Approval</u>	Appointments	Locations	1≜ <u>Created</u>	1 <u>≊_Updated</u>
Clear	Filter	All 🗸			All 🗸		All 🗸		
Edit	Delete	0	fluvac	Flu Vaccination	8	Manage 1	Manage 1	7/20/2023 11:09 PM	10/9/2023 11:37 PI
Edit	Delete	0	hscrn	Health Screening	8	Manage 1	Manage 1	7/21/2023 12:38 AM	10/9/2023 11:39 PM
2 total recor	ds								

Adding Appointment Types

To add a new appointment type, click the "New Appointment Type" button. You'll need to provide values for the following appointment type fields:

Note: Default PGX appointment types processed by Genemarkers have already been added to the system. You won't be able to edit these appointment types, but you will be able to select them for processing at your location(s).

Name	The appointment type name is what patients will see and select from when scheduling appointments.
Code	You can use a unique short set of characters (up to 25) to represent this appointment type. This code can be used to reference the appointment type in a URL. See the section on Appointment Type URLs below.
Expected Duration	This is the amount of time you expect it to take to process this type of appointment.
Description	You can enter a description for this appointment type here.
Is Active	If this checkbox is selected, the appointment type will be active and available for patients to select when they are scheduling an appointment.
Requires Provider Approval	This checkbox is used for appointment types that result in a test that is processed externally and requires approval from a physician. This checkbox should not be checked for appointments that are processed and completed in the pharmacy alone.
Request Insurance Information	If this checkbox is selected, the scheduling form will request that the patient enter their insurance information.
Require Patient Fields	If this checkbox is selected, a patient will be required to enter responses in the following patient fields when scheduling an appointment: Name, DOB, Sex, Email, Phone, and Address. If not selected, only the patient's name and DOB will be required.
Alternate Insurance Message	This is an optional message that can be displayed to the patient when they're scheduling an appointment if they indicate that they are uninsured.
Consent Text	This is optional text that you can add to display for a patient to read and agree to when they schedule this type of an appointment. If no text is entered here, the default consent text will be displayed: " <i>By completing this form and</i> <i>submitting your request, you are consenting to the</i> <i>transmission, storage, and retrieval of the information</i> <i>contained herein for the sole purpose of servicing your</i> <i>request. To proceed, please check the box below to indicate</i> <i>your consent.</i> "
Custom Fields	Custom fields can be added to an appointment type to collect additional information from patients, or to record information when processing an appointment. See the section on Adding Custom Fields below.

Adding Custom Fields

Custom fields are not required, but if added, they will be included on the appointment form for the patient or pharmacist to fill out. To add additional fields to an appointment type, click the "Add Field" button. You'll need to provide the following values for a custom field:

Code	You'll need a unique short set of characters (up to 25) to represent a custom field.
Label Text	This is the text that will appear on the form for this field.
Help Text	Help text is optional, but if entered, will be displayed below the field on the form to provide additional information for this field.
Is Required	If this checkbox is selected, a value will be required in this field.
Office Only	If this checkbox is selected, this field will only be visible to pharmacists and can be used for entering additional information when processing the appointment. The patient will not see this field when scheduling an appointment.
Field Type	The field type defines what the field will look like, or the data type for the field on the form. If an Option field type is selected, you'll also be able to define the options available to select from.

Multiple custom fields can be added to a submission type. Fields can be removed by clicking on the "Remove" button for that field, and you can use the "Reorder fields" button to change the order of the fields on the form that the patient will fill out for this submission type.

Note: An appointment type must be added to a tenant location in order for patients to select it when scheduling an appointment. Please see the section on managing tenant locations.

Editing Appointment Types

Existing appointment types can be edited by clicking on the "Edit" button for that type. After making changes, click the "Save" button to save them.

Deleting Appointment Types

If an appointment type has not yet been used and is not assigned to a location, it can be deleted by clicking on the "Delete" button for that type.

Appointment Type URLs

Appointment types can be referenced in URLs so that patients can be directed to the appointment form with the appointment type already selected. For example, you may want to add a link to your pharmacy website that directs patients to register for a flu shot. To do this, you'll need to use the code that was defined for the appointment type in the URL. You'll use your ARxConnect Provider Portal URL, adding "/appointments/schedule?type=**code**" where "code" is the appointment type code.

Managing Tenant Locations

A single tenant location representing your primary pharmacy location will be set up for you in the system. If you have multiple locations, you can add additional tenant locations. If you have multiple locations, patients will have to select a location when scheduling an appointment. Any tenant locations added will be included in the list on the Tenant Locations page for you to manage.

+ New Tenar		↓↑ Set Display									
$ \langle \rangle $	Page 1	of 1 Show: 25	✓ Skip to pa	ige: 1	Go	S					
Actions	Î <u>≜_Active</u>	∱ <u>≜ Billing Code</u>	1 [≜] <u>Location Code</u>	1 [≜] _ <u>Name</u>	<u>Î≜_Region</u>	∱ <u>≜ Time Zone</u>	Resources	Appointment Types	Appointments	Î <u>≊_Created</u>	1 <u>≜_U</u>
Clear Filter	All 🗸							All 🗸			
Edit	0	BLACK1	bcp	Black Creek Pharmacy	(US-MI) Michigan	America/Detroit	1	Manage 7	Manage 24	7/21/2023 2:52 AM	9
1 total record											

Adding Tenant Locations

To add a tenant location, click the "New Tenant Location" button. You'll need to provide values for the following tenant location fields:

Is Active	If this checkbox is selected, the tenant location will be active and available for patients to select when they are scheduling an appointment.
Name	The location name is what patients will see and select from when scheduling appointments.
Code	This code is a unique ID that will be assigned to you. Any additional locations will need a new code. Please contact support to obtain a code if you need to add a new location.
Location Code	You can use a unique short set of characters (up to 25) to represent this location.
Time Zone	Select the time zone for this location.
System of measurement	Select the default system of measurement for this location.
Organizational NPI	Optional - If your organization has an NPI, it can be entered here.
Provider NPI	Optional - If you have a provider NPI, it can be entered here.
Contact Information	Please enter the contact and address information for the location here.
Resources	You'll need to add resources to process appointments. See the section on Adding Resources below.
Appointment Types	Select the appointment types that will be processed at this location. You'll be able to choose from default appointment types (such as PGX testing appointments), and any appointment types that you have added. If no appointment

types are selected, patients will not be able to schedule
appointments at this location.

Adding Resources

Resources are used to define when appointment types can be processed at a location. For example, maybe you can only process flu shots on Tuesdays and Thursdays, or maybe you have additional pharmacy technicians available on Mondays, so you're able to process multiple appointments at the same time. To add resources to a tenant location, click the "Add Resource" button. You'll need to provide the following values for resources:

Name	This is the name for this resource. You can use something specific such as a person's name, or something more generic like "Pharmacy Tech 1".
Notes	Options – You can add some notes for your own benefit here.
Appointment types	Select the appointment type(s) that this resource is able to process during the availability you have defined.
Availability	Select the day of the week and start and end times this resource is available to process the selected appointment types. You can add multiple availability rows to define a schedule for this resource.

You can continue adding resources as necessary to define a schedule for which resources can process which appointment types, and when they can be processed at this location.

Editing Tenant Locations

Existing tenant locations can be edited by clicking on the "Edit" button for that location. After making changes, click the "Save" button to save them.

Note: Please do not change the billing code for tenant locations. These have been assigned to you and changing them will prevent lab orders from being processed correctly.

Deleting Tenant Locations

If a location has not yet been used and is not associated with any appointment types, it can be deleted by clicking on the "Delete" button for that location.

Managing Payors

In some cases, you may have special acknowledgement requirements for certain insurers. For example, an insurer may require a patient to agree to an Advance Beneficiary Notice for a specific test. You set up those payors and acknowledgements on the Payors page.

Payors	Payors					
+ New Payor						
K < > H	Page 1 of 1 Show	r: 25 🗸 Skip to page:	1 Go 🔁			
Actions	↓ [≜] <u>Active</u>	↓ [≜] <u>Name</u>	Has Required Acknowledgements	↓ [†] <u>Created</u>	↓ [®] _ <u>Updated</u>	
Clear Filter	All 🗸					
Edit Dele	te 🕑	BCBS	0	10/10/2023 3:40 AM		
1 total record						
н<>н	Page 1 of 1 Show	c 25 Y Skip to page	1 Go 🔁			

Adding Payors

You can add a new payor by clicking on the "New Payor" button. A payor must have a name, and you can define whether it is active by checking the "Is Active" checkbox. A payor must be associated with one or more appointment types so that a patient can see and agree to the payor acknowledgement when that appointment type is selected. When adding an appointment type to the payor, you'll be able to define the text for the acknowledgement.

When payor(s) have been defined for an appointment type, patients will see that list of payors in the insurance section on the appointment form. If they select a payor from the list, the defined payor acknowledgement will be displayed for them to agree to.

	Insurance Information
	I am uninsured
	or (select one) Defined Payors
(O BCBS - Blue Cross / Blue Shield
	O Medicare Payor Acknowledgement
	I acknowledge that my health care provider has notified me that the service(s) listed below may not be payable by Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan. I understand that payment for these services is my responsibility. I agree to be responsible for payment.
	Service(s): PGXMarkers PLUS
	I hereby acknowledge that I have received this notice and understand my responsibilities as outlined in this notice
	The selected primary insurance requires acknowledgement of the message shown above

Note: Payor acknowledgements will only be displayed for appointment types that require insurance.

Editing Payors

Existing payors can be edited by clicking on the "Edit" button for that payor. After making changes, click the "Save" button to save them.

Deleting Payors

Payors can be deleted by clicking on the delete button for that payor.

Managing Provider Portal Users

You will have one initial user set up for you. That primary user will be responsible for adding any additional users for your organization.

Adding Users

You can add a new user by clicking on the "New User" button. The username should be the email address for the individual you're adding, and the display name should be their name. If you have multiple locations, you can select the primary location for that user. You'll need to select the permissions that you want to give to this new user to define the functions that will be available to them in ARxConnect. You have the option of either providing a password for the new user, or you can have the system send them a password reset notification.

Editing Users

Existing users can be edited by clicking on the "Edit" button for that user. After making changes, click the "Save" button to save them.

Deleting Users

Users can be deleted, but in most cases you'll simply want to deactivate the user account to remove their access to ARxConnect. To deactivate a user, edit their account and uncheck the "Is Active" checkbox, then save your changes.

Contact Information

For issues or questions related to ARxConnect, please contact us at support@arx-connect.com.